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ARTEMIS CARDIAC CARE

Plot No. 14, Sector-20, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Third Annual General Meeting of the members of Artemis Cardiac Care
Private Limited (“Company”) will be held on Tuesday, 5" July, 2022 at 3:00 P.M. at Plot No. 14, Sector — 20,
Dwarka, Delhi — 110075 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sachin Grover (DIN: 08330668), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Sd/-
Place: Gurugram (Shilpa Budhia)
Date: May 9, 2022 Company Secretary

Membership No. A23564
Address: Artemis Hospital, Sector-
51, Gurugram-122001

ARTEMIS CARDIAC CARE PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: Plot No. 14, Sector-20, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075
GST: 07AARCA7906R1ZR | CIN No: U85110DL2019PTC344351 | PAN: AARCA7906R | TAN: DELA52761C
Landline: 0124-4588855 | Email: shilpa.budhia@artemishospitals.com
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 3" Annual Report on the business and operations of Artemis

Cardiac Care Private Limited (“the Company”), together with the audited financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is summarized below:

(R in Lacs)
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2022 Year ended 31.03.2021
Revenue from operation 1001.72 639.47
Other Income 2.85 0.58
Total Revenue 1004.57 640.05
Total Expenditure 1167.33 778.00
Profit before Tax (162.76) (137.95)
Less: Tax Expense* (44.81) (44.86)
Net Profit for the Year (117.95) (93.09)

OPERATIONS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Revenue of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 amounted to % 1001.72 lacs as against X
639.47 Lacs in the previous year. After providing for depreciation and tax, net loss amounted to ¥ 117.95
Lacs as against the loss of ¥ 93.09 in the previous year.

It is also pertinent to highlight that COVID 19 pandemic has resulted in disruption in regular business
operation once again after second wave of COVID 19. However, the Company has adopted measures to
ensure business continuity with minimal disruption and the business is expected to return to normal.

During the year under review, your Company has installed 3 new Cardiac centres and other medical
equipment to provide superior clinical outcomes to the patients. The above initiatives have helped the
Company to provide improved medical quality and holistic care to our patients in a more effective manner.
As on 31% March, 2022, your Company has 6 cardiac centres running at Ranchi, Panipat, Gwalior, Kanpur,
Mathura and Jammu. The Company is in the process to install / commence the operations of few more
Cardiac centres including Prayagraj, New Delhi, Rewari and Bhopal among others.

There is no amount proposed to be transferred to reserves during the year under review.
DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of your Company have not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There are no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company and hence, as at the end
of financial year, the Composition of the Board of Directors were as under:

i Dr. Devlina Chakravarty



ii. Dr. (Col) Manjinder Singh Sandhu
iii. Mr. Sachin Grover

None of the aforesaid Directors are disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sachin
Grover, Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(AGM)., and being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. The Board recommended his re-
appointment to the members at the ensuing AGM.

During the year under review, Mr. Arpit Jain had stepped down from the position of Chief Executive officer
of the Company with effect from August 31, 2021.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of your Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and on the
date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS

No significant material orders have been passed during the year under review by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policy and strategy apart
from other Board businesses. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval
is taken by way of Board Meeting through shorter notice or by passing resolutions through circulation, as
permitted by law, which are noted in the subsequent Board Meeting.

During the year under review, four (4) Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the meetings was within the period as prescribed under the Act. The Board meetings were held on
May 7, 2021, August 3, 2021, October 22, 2021 and January 27, 2022.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy The operations of the company are not energy-
intensive. However, measures are being taken to reduce the energy consumption by using energy efficient
equipment. Some of the efforts taken in the financial year under review are given as below:

e To create awareness among all users about energy conservation
e Energy consumption monitoring & controlling

As, energy costs comprises a very small part of Company’s total expenses, the financial implications of
these measures are not material.



B. Technology Absorption

Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption and benefits derived as a result of these efforts, e.g.
product improvement, cost reduction, product development, import substitution etc.

Medical technology plays a crucial role in enhancing the quality of delivery, reduction in turnaround time
of workflows and thus the overall cost, besides bringing in higher accountability into the system. Your
Company has consistently invested in acquiring latest and newer technologies that result in better clinical
outcomes and hence, greater patient satisfaction.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Your Company is engaged in the healthcare business and is not carrying any export business.

Particulars Current Year
Earnings in Foreign Currency Nil
Expenditure in Foreign Currency Nil

SUBSIDIARY/HOLDING/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your company is the subsidiary Company of Artemis Medicare Services Limited.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required by Rule 5(2) and (3) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules 2014, there were no employees employed during the year who were in receipt of
remuneration which is not more than X 8,50,000/- (Eight lacs fifty thousand only) per month or
% 1,02,00,000/- (One crore two lacs only) per annum.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, your Company has accepted deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Act, read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company
at its First AGM held on September 22, 2020, had appointed M/s. SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration N0.000235N/ N500089), as Statutory Auditors of your Company. The present term of
M/s. SCV & Co. LLP, as Statutory Auditors, would expire at the conclusion of the 6" AGM.

STATUTORY AUDITORS REPORT

The report given by M/s. SCV & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors on financial
statements of the Company for FY 2021-22 is part of the Annual Report. The comments on statement of
accounts referred to in the report of the Auditors are self-explanatory. The Auditors’ Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. During the year under review, the Auditors had not
reported any matter under Particulars Current year Section 143(12) of the Act. Therefore no detail is
required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

REPORTING OF FRAUD

During the year under review, the Auditors have not reported any fraud, which are committed against the
Company by officers or employees of the Company.



PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

A formal policy is already in place for the prevention of sexual harassment of its employees at workplace
and the Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Committee under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the
year under review, no case was reported pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL A. AUTHORISED CAPITAL

A. AUTHORISED CAPITAL

The Authorized Capital of the Company is %15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores only) divided into
1,50,00,000 (One Crore and Fifty Lacs only) equity shares of 310/- (Rupees ten only) each.

B. PAID UP CAPITAL

The Paid up Capital of the Company is X 8,60,00,000/- (Rupees Eight Crore and Sixty Lacs only) divided
into 86,00,000 (Eighty-Six Lacs only) equity shares of X10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

C. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY

During the year under review, the Company has allotted 20,00,000 Equity Shares in aggregate on right
basis to existing shareholders as per below:

Date Allotment details
December 03, 2021 20,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each

D. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS
Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights during the year under review.

E. PROVISION OF MONEY BY COMPANY FOR PURCHASE OF ITS OWN SHARES BY
EMPLOYEES OR BY TRUSTEES FOR THE BENEFIT OF EMPLOYEES

Your Company has not made any provision of money for purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees during the year under review.

ANNUAL RETURN

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at the link:
https://www.artemiscardiac.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3) (g) of the Act, the Company has neither given any loans,
guarantees nor made any investments under Section 186 of the Act.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All arrangements/ transactions/ contracts entered by the Company during the financial year with related

parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and do not attract the provisions
of Section 188 of the Act.


https://www.artemiscardiac.com/

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company continues to hold its registered office at Plot No. 14, Sector-20, Dwarka, New Delhi- 110075.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its
ability to achieve its strategic objectives. The Company has implemented Management System that
incorporates framework for managing risks and internal controls. The Company’s management systems,
organizational structure, processes, standards and behaviours together form the Management System that
governs how the Company conducts the business and manages associated risks. The Company continues
to integrate Risk Management, Internal Controls Management and Assurance frameworks and processes to
drive a common integrated view of risks, optimal risk mitigation responses and efficient management of
internal control and assurance activities. This integration is enabled by all three being fully aligned with
Group level methodologies, processes and systems.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal Financial Controls are an integrated part of the risk management process, addressing financial and
financial reporting risks. Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial controls is obtained through
management reviews, control self-assessment, continuous monitoring by functional experts as well as
testing of the internal financial control systems by the statutory auditors during the course of their audits.
The Company believes that these systems provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s internal
financial controls are designed effectively and are operating as intended.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, the Directors confirm that:

a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, for the year ended March 31, 2022 the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and no material departures have been made from the same;

b) That they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c) That they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) That they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) That they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively, and

f) That they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meeting of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company upholds professionalism, integrity and continuous improvement across all functions, as
well as optimum utilisation of the Company’s resources for sustainable and profitable growth. Your
Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to business partners, members, bankers and other
stakeholders for their continued support during the year. We also thank all our employees for their
contributions towards the growth of your Company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Date: May 9, 2022 Sd/-
Place: Gurugram Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
Chairperson
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARTEMIS CARDIAC CARE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of ARTEMIS CARDIAC CARE PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
together referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022, and
its loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows and for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Ind AS financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information mcluded in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors including annexures
to Board'’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Noida Office : 505, 5th Floor Tower B, World Trade Tower, C-1, Sector 16, Noida- 201301 T: +91-120-481440C \
Other Offices : Ludhiana ¢ Mumbai



In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could rcasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind
AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work ; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatement in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with goveinance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
' far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive income),

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified ninder Sertinn 123 nf the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.




(e)

()

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.  Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I

ii.

iii.

iv,

The Company does not have any impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not proposed, declared and paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly
reporting under Rule 11(f) is not applicable to the Company.




3.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

According to information and explanation given to us, no managerial remuneration for the year
ended March 31, 2022 has been paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 09T MAY, 2022

(SUNNY SINGH)
PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP No.516834
ICAI UDIN: 22516834AIQZTN 1826



ii.

i,

iv.

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our Report of even date.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(b)

(©

(d)
(e)

(@)

(b)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B)The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of accounts of the Company.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Physical verification of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been conducted by the
management during the year. All the Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have not
been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular phased
programme of physical verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and nature of its Property, Plant and Equipment. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is a lessee and lease
agreements are duly executed in the favour of the lessee) held by the Company. Accordingly, the
paragraphs 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year and the coverage and procedure adopted by the management for verification is
appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed during the physical verification of inventory by the
management which could aggregate 10% or more for each class of inventory.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore, in aggregate,
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security
or granted any loans or advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Accordingly, the paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investment, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions
of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 are applicable. Accordingly, the paragraph
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. '




vi.

vii.

viil.

ix.

The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

(b)

the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax,
goods and services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods
and services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess and other material
statutory dues were outstanding, as on 31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, there are no dues of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income
tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and services tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax
and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as income

- during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of
interest to the lenders.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanations given by the
management, the term loans obtained by the Company were applied for the purpose for which it
was obtained.

(d)The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis. Accordingly, the paragraph
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures. Accordingly, the
paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures. Accordingly, the
paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(x)(2) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally convertible). Accordingly, the
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable the Company.




Xi.

Xii.

xiii,

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower Complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a)In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xvi)(a) to 3(xvi)(c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b)In our opinion, there is no core investment company with in the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 ) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 46.06 Lakhs during the financial year
covered by our audit and cash losses amounting to Rs. 51.40 Lakhs during the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 27, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.




XX.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 09T MAY, 2022

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089

(SUNNY SINGH)
PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP No. 516834

Al UDIN: 22516834AIQZTN1826




Annexure “B” To the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARTEMIS CARDIAC CARE
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

New Delhi

g




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 09T MAY, 2022

(SUNNY SINGH)
PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP No. 516834

ICAI UDIN: 22516834AIQZTN1826




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Financial Statement for the year ended
31st Mar, 2022




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022

As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Ns. in Locy

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 1,249,58 1,128 85
Capital Work-in-Progress 2.2 12.23 5.26
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3 126,08 8141
Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 4 69.37 31.99
Other Non-Current Assets 5 13.00 0.95
Total Non-Current Assets A 1,470.26 1,248.46
Current Assets
Inventories 6 64.88 3577
Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables 7 377.96 174.35

ii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 58.45 227.36

iii. Loans 9 0.48 0.74

iv. Other Financial Assets 10 " 267 0.80
Other Current Assets 5 4.32 4.42
Total Current Assets B 508.76 443.44
Total Assets C=A+B 1,979.02 1,691.90
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11 860.00 660,00
Other Equity 12 (334.81) (217.20)
Total Equity D 525.19 442,80
Liabilties
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 13 871.76 896.30
Provisions 16 7.95 6.90
Total Non-Current Liabilities E 879.71 903.20
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

i. Borrowings 13 209.16 70.57

ii. Trade Payables 14

{A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and 166 B

Small Enterprises

| : - .

B e

iii. Other Financial Liabilities 15 146.21 121.89
Provisions 16 1.54 138
Other Current Liabilities 17 12.77 10.94
Total Current Liabilities F 574.12 345.90
Total Liabilities G=E+F 1,453.83 1,249.10
Total Equity and Liabilities H=D+G 1,979.02 1,691.90
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2to37
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
For SCV & Co. LLP of Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Numper 000235N / NS00089 Z\/\/

Coken (S
<’V
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty Dr. M5 Fand

{Sunny Singh)
Partner
Membership No. 516834

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 9th May 2022

[Diractor]

[DIN ; W

-«

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 9th May 2022

|Dire
[DIN : 08405644]

T4

Shilpz Budhfa

ygzey

[Company Secretary)



Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
Nn 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Income
Revenue from Operations 18 1,001.72 639 47
Other Income 19 2.85 0.58
Total Income (1) 1,004.57 640.05
Expenses
Furchases of Pharmacy urugs & iviedlcal Consutnables 266.07 176 76
Changes in Inventories 20 (29.11) (13.75)
Employee Benefits Expense 21 210.86 150.36
Finance Costs 22 81.44 66.96
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 23 111.47 86.55
Other Expenses 24 526.60 311.12
Total Expenses (1) 1,167.33 778.00
Profit Before Tax =(1-1) (162.76) {137.95)
Tax Expense 25
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax (44.81) (44.86)
Total Tax Expense (Iv) (44.81) (44.86)
Profit After Tax V={Illl-1V) {117.95) (93.09})
Other Comprehensive Income for the year Vi
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (Refer note 29) 0.48 0.92
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (0.14) (0.26)
Other Comprehensive Income Vi 0.34 0.66
Total Comprehensive Income V= (V+VI) (117.61) (92.43)
Earning Per Equity Share (Face Value Of Rs. 10/- Each) 29
Basic(Rs.) (1.63) (2.66)
Diluted(Rs.) {1.63) (2.66)
Significant Accounting Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2t037

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 000235N / N500089

(Sunny Singh) ik
Partner
Membership Nu. 516834

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 9th May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

j &ZJ@-A‘”

Dr. Devlina Chakrava
[Director]
[DIN : 07107875]

Place : Gurugram
Dated: Yth May 2022

Shilpa Budhia
[Company Secretary]



Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2022

For the year ended

Fui the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
fis. in Locs Rs. in Lacs

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax (162.76) (137.95)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation 111.47 86.55
Interest Income (2.58) (0.31)
Finance Cost 81.44 66.96
Loss on sale/scrap of Property Plant and Equipment 5.54 4.57
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 33.09 19.82
Movements in working capital :
Changes in trade receivables (203.61) (165.32)
Changes in inventories {29.11) (13.75)
Changes in loans{Current) 0.27 0.03
Changes in other non current assets (12.05) (0.86)
Changes in other financial assets (Current) (1.87) 0.28
Chnages in other current assets 0.09 (2.66)
Changes in trade payables 63.32 83.06
Changes in provisions(Non Current) 1.70 4.37
Changes in Other current liabilities(Current) 1.83 3.22
Changes in Other financial liabilities(Current) 24.32 92.84
Cash generated from operations {122.03) 21.04
Income tax pald/(refund) (37.38) (23.77)
Net cash generated from operating activites (A) {159.41) (2.73)
Cash flow from investing activity
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (247.17) (623.87)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 2.47 13.08
Bank deposits having original maturity of more than 3 months - -
Interest received 2.58 0.31
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (242.12) (610.48)
Cash flow from financing activity
Proceeds from long term borrowings 190.60 466.20
Repayment of long term borrowings (76.54) -
Proceeds from issue of Equity share capital 200.00 400.00
Interest paid (81.44) (66.96)
Net cash generated from financing activites (C} 232.62 799.25
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C} (168.91) 186.04
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 227.36 41.32
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 58.45 227.36
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 17.44 0.46
Balances with Banks:

in current accounts 41.01 226.90
Total 58.45 227.36

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

[.Cat.

Dr. Devlina Chakraval
[Director]
[DIN : 07107875]

-

As per our report of even date attached

For SCV & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Nurgber 000235N / N500089

Dr. MS 53
|Direct
[DIN : 08405644)

S A (pa Boollop

Shilpa Budhia
[Company Segretary]

(Sunny Singh)
Partner
Membership No. 516834

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 9th May 2022

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 9th May 2022



Artem|s Cardiac Care Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note No. 2.1
Rs in Lacs
Property, Plant and Equipment
Particulars Computers Furniture & Fixtures  Office Equipments  Plant and Equipments Vehicles Total
Gross Block
At Cost
As at 1st April 2020 6.26 7.88 6.59 612,88 11.08 64471
Additions during the year 2.08 19.55 2133 594.65 - 618.61
Disposals / Discarded during the year - {1.67) - (18.10) - (19.77)
Adjustment during the year - - - -
As at 31st March 2021 8.34 25.77 8.92 1,189.44 11.08 1,243.55
Additions during the year 3.64 233 1237 221.87 - 240.21
Disposals / Discarded during the year - - - {11.08) {11.08)
Adjustment during the year - - -
As at 31st March, 2022 11.98 28.10 2139 1,411.31 - 1,472.68
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April 2020 138 1.02 0.30 2646 111 30.27
Charge for the year 2.39 3.14 1.89 771.74 1.39 86.55
Disposals / Discarded during the year - (0.20) - (1.92) (2.12)
As at 31st March 2021 1.77 186 2.1 102.28 2.50 114.70
Charge for the year 2.78 3.30 2.71 102.11 0.57 111.47
Disposals / Discarded during the year - - - - (3.07) (3.07)
As at 31st March, 2022 6.55 7.28 4.90 204.39 - 223.10
Net Block
As at 31st March 2021 4,57 21.81 6.73 1,087.16 8.58 1,128.85
As at 31st March, 2022 5.43 20.84 16.39 1,206.52 = 1,249.58
Note No. 2.2
Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2022 2021

Capital Work In Progress 12.23 5.26
Total 12.23 5.26
Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Project in Progress 10.10 213 - - 12.23

526 - = 5.26
Total Capital Work in Progress 10.10 213 - - 12.23

5.26 - - - 5.26

*Previous year figures in italics




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Uimited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Credit / (Charge) to
. . Credit / (Charge) to Other Asat 31st
. D H , o
Note No. eferred tax assets / (llabilities) in relation to As at 1st April, 2021 Profit or loss Comprehensive  March, 2022
Income
3 Deferred Tax Assets / {Uabilities) {Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / liabilities
recognised In statement of profit and loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Property, plant and equipment (19.73) (26.35) - {46.08)
Employee Benefits 230 0.48 {0.14) 264
Unabsorbed business losses as per Income Tax Act 98.78 69.23 . 168.01
Others 0.06 145 - 151
8141 44.81 0,14) 126.08
Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities have been
offset as they are governed by the same taxation faws.
Credit / {Charge) to
N . Credit / {Charge) to Other As at 31st
. Deferred ta: d
Note No. eferred tax assets / (liabilities} In relation to As at 1st April, 2020 Profit orloss Comprehensive  March, 2021
Income
3
Deferred Tax Assets / {Llabilities) (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / liabilities
recognised in statement of profit and loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
Property, plant and equipment {11.00) {873} . {19.73)
Employee Benefits 122 134 (0.26) 230
Unabsorbed bustness losses as per Income Tax Act 46.41 5237 - 98,78
Others 0.18 {0:12}) - 0.06
36.81 ﬂlég (0.26) 8141
Asat Asat
Note Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
No. fis. In tacs Rs. In Lacs
4 Income tax assets
Non Current
Income Tax Recoverable 69.37 3199
Total 6937 31.99
Asat Asat
Note Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
No. Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lats
5 Other Assets
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Non-Current
Capital Advances 13.00 0.95
Prepald Expenses = =
Total 13.00 0.95
i
Current
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Advances recoverable 0.05 253
Balance with statutory authorities 357 105
Prepald Expenses 0.70 0.84
4.32 4.42
=<
Note Partizulars Asat Asat
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rz InLacs Rs. In Locs
6 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stock of Ph Drugs & Medical C bl 64.88 35.77

Total 64.88 35.77




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note  Particulars Asat As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
7 Trade Receivables (Unsecured)
Current
Considered goad 383.18 174.35
Less: Expected Credit Loss Allowance 522 s
377.96 174.35

In accordance with ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss towards expected risk of delays and
default in collection.

The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade receivables, based on the Company’s historical experience
towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting period. The provision matrix used to compute the expected credit loss allowance for different
categories of trade receivables is as follows.

Ageing ECL%
Not Due 0.1%
Less than & Months 2%
& Months - 1 Year 5%
1-2 Years 20%
2:3 Years 50%
More than 3 Years 100%
The movement in allowance for expected credit lass in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
i AsAt As At
|Allowance for expected credit loss
" i ' 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Opening balance - s
Expected Credit loss created during the year 5.22 )
Expected Credit loss reversed during the year s =
Closing batance 523 =
Trade lvables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
More than 3 Unbilled
Particulars Not Due Less than & Months |6 Months -1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Receivables  [Total
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 78.24 257.11 - - - - 47.83 383.18
130.37 43.98 = - + - - 174.35
Undisputed Trade receivables —credit impaired - - - - - s = n
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - - = =
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Less: Allowance for Credit Loss 0.08 514 5§22
Total Trade Receivables 251.97 - - - - 47.83 37796
Previous Year 43.98 - - - - 17435

* Previous Yeor Figures in Itolics




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As at As at
No 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

8  Cash & Cash Equivalents

Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 41.01 226.90

Cash on hand 17.44 0.46

58.45 227.36




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
9 Loans
Current
Loans & advances to Employees 0.48 0.74
0.48 0.74
Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
10 Other Financial Assets
Current
Unbilled Revenue(Accrued operating income) 2.67 0.80
2.67 0.80




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Fmancial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
11  Eauity Share Capital:
Authorised Shares (in nos.) 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,50,00,000( Previous Year 1,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares {in nos.}
86,00,000 (Previous Year:66,00,000 )Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each 860.00 660.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital 860.00 660.00
a. Reconciliation of the equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
Reconciliation As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Nos. Rs. In Lacs Nos. Rs. In Lacs

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 66,00,000 660.00 26,00,000 260.00
Shares issued during the year 20,00,000 200.00 40,00,000 400.00
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 86,00,000 860.00 66,00,000 660.00

b. Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, where
voting is held by show of hands. In case of Poll each holder of equity share is entitled to Number of votes against Number of shares held.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity share holders.

c. Equity Shares held by holding company :

Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs No. of Shares | Rs. In Lacs
Artemis Medicare Services Limited - holding company 55,90,000 558.00 42,590,000 | 422.00
d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:
Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Artemis Medicare Services Limited - holding company 55,90,000 65% 42,90,000 - 65%
Philips Medical Systems Nederland BV 30,10,000 35% 23,10,000 35%
e, Details of Equity Shares Held by the Pr s at the end of the year

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Promoter Name % Change

No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Shares % of Total Shares in Holding
Artemnis Medicare Services Limited - holding company 55,90,000 65% 42,90,000 65% -
Philips Medical Systems Nederland BV 30,10,000 35% 23,10,000 35% -
Total 86,00,000 100% 66.00.000 100%




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
12  Other Equity:

Retained earnings

Balance as per last flnancial statements (217.20) (124.77)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (117.95) (93.09)
Other comprehensive income arising from re- 0.34 0.66
measurement of defined benefit obligation net of income

tax

Balance at end of the year (334.81) (217.20)
Total Other Equity (334.81) (217.20)

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserve

and dividends or other distributions to shareholders etc.




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Nétes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Statement of changes in Equity

1) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Note Amount
Balance as at 1st April 2021 660.00
Equity Share capital issued during the year 200.00
Balance as at March 31, 2022 11 860.00
Balance as at 1st April 2020 260.00
Equity Share capital issued during the year 400.00
Balance as at March 31, 2021 11 660.00 |
2) Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Note No. . . Remeasurements of the net defined Total
Retained Earnings
benefit plans
Balance as at 1st April 2020 (124.77) - (124.77)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year 12 {93.09) - (93.09)
Other Comprehensive Income {OCl) (net of tax) 12 - 0.66 0.66
Balance as at March 31, 2021 12 {217.86) 0.66 (217.20)
Balance as at 1st April 2021 (217.86}) 0.66 [217.20)
Profitf (Loss) for the year 12 {117.95) - {117.95)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCl} {net of tax) 12 - 0.34 0.34
Balance as at March 31, 2022 12 {335.81) 1.00 {334.81)
Significant A-ccounting Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 21037
As per our report of even date attached on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SCV & Co. LLP is Cardiac Care Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 000235N / N500089 L
-
' ~
AN Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
e [Director]

[DIN : 07107875
{Sunny Singh})

Parlnet

Membership No. 516834

Plare - Gurigram
Natar- ath May 707?

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 9th May 2022

{Direbtaf]
[DIN : 08409644}

Shilpa Bughia
|Company Secretary]



Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

13 Borrowings
Non Current

Term Loans
From Banks
- Indian Rupee loans from Banks {secured
at amortised cost) 871.76 896.30
Total 871.76 896.30
Current
Term Loans
From Banks
- Indian Rupee loans from Banks {secured) 209.16 70.57
209.16 70.57

1. Indian Rupee Loans from Banks include : ,

a) Term loans of Rs. 1080.92 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2021 Rs. 966.87 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as linked with one year
MCLR .The loans are secured by the charge on entire movable fixed assets and second charge on current assets. Further, these loans are
secured by corporate guarantee given by holding company.

As per the Covenants of the Sanction of term loan, the Company is not required to file the quarterly statements with bank.

Secured Loan-
Repayment Schedule HDFC Bank
FY 2022-23 209.16
FY 2023-24 232.40
FY 2024-25 244.02
FY 2025-26 255.64
FY 2026-27 139.70
Total 1,080.92




Artemls Cardiac Care Private Umited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars Asat Asat
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
As. lmlacs Re |6 Lacs
14 Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(Refer Note 28) 3.66
Total OQutstanding dues of Credltors ather than Micro Enterprises
and Small Enterprises 200.79 14112
Toral 204.45 14112
=
Trade oles ageing schedule for the year ended 35 on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 23 Yeary Mete than 3 Years Total
366 3.56
IZ.mhers 20075 . 0673
141,32 14812
|3. Dlsputed Dues-MSME
3. Disputed Dues-Others
TotsiTrade Payabie 2048.45 - = 10845
Previous Year 14112 d4112
* Previous Year Figures in ftalics
Note Partkulars Asat Asat
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs.In Lacs Rs.Inlacs
15  OtherFinanclal Uabifitles
Current
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 721 6.80
Other Payable® 134,79 115.09
Security Depasits & -
Total 146.21 ms;

* Other payable includes payments due an account of capital items, due to emplayees.




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

16 Provisions
Non- Current
Provision for Employee Benefits

Leave Benefits 6.21 5.85
Gratuity 1.74 1.05
(Refer Note 31)

Total 7.95 6.90
Current

Provision for Employee Benefits

Leave Benefits 1.53 1.38
Gratuity * 0.01 0.00
(Refer Note 31)

Total 1.54 1.38

* The figure is below rounding off norms( Nil, 31st March 2022; Rs. 391, 31st March 2021)

Note Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

17 Other Liabilities

Current

Security Deposits - 2.52
Taxes and other statutory dues* 12.76 8.42
Total 12.77 10.94

*Taxes and other statutory dues includes Withholding Tax, Goods and Services Tax contribution of PF,
ESl etc.




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the Year ended 8318t March, 2022

Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
As. inlacs Rs. In Lacs
18 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Services
Revenue from Health Care Services 864.90 510.07
Sale of Goods
Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 136.82 129.40
Total 1,001.72 639.47
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs.inlacs Rs. in Lacs
19 Otherincome
Interest Income
- From Bank deposits 258 031
Other Non-Operating Income 0.27 0.27
Total 2.85 0.58
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
20 | } /D in of
Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables
Inventories at the beginning of the year 35.77 - 22.02
fnventories at the end of the year 64.88 (29.11) 35.77 (13.75}
Total !29.‘11! 13.75
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
21 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 192.64 137.55
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 12.34 8.14
Gratuity Expenses{Refer Note 31) 117 0.73
Employee Welfare Expenses 471 394
Total 210.86 18036




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
22 Finance Costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost
- Onterm Loans 79.65 65.03 -
Gther Borrowing Costs 133 0.63
Bank Charges 0.46 1.30
Total 8144 66.96
—_— —— S
Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
23 Depredciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 111.47 86.55
Total 11147 86.55




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
24 Other expenses

Rent - Lease Rent 0.80 1.28
Legal & Professional Fees 2.05 2.43
Equipment Hire Charges 0.34 0.48
Provision for Expected credit loss 5.22 -
Patient Facility Maintenance 17.75 11.22
Preliminary Expenses Written Off o =
Travelling & Conveyance 9.74 6.60
Advertisement & Business Promotion 41.70 18.31
Professional Medical Consultancy 2.53 5.91
Auditors Remuneration

- Statutory Audit Fee 1.50 118

-Tax Audit Fee 0.50 0.59

- Others Services & Certification 0.89 0.89
Printing & Stationery 2.61 0.85
Communication Expenses 1.96 2.67
Outsource Lab Test Charges 1.44 1.17
Security Charges 4.29 4.00
Fee paid to doctors 340.54 193.53
Power & Fuel 13.35 11.50
Repairs and Maintenance

- Machinery 70.19 27.85

- Others 157 141
Insurance 1.12 0.91
Rates & Taxes 0.63 13.30
Subscription / Membership Fees 0.23 0.15
Loss on Sale / Scrap of Property, Plant and Equipment
{Net) 5.54 457
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.03 0.07
Total 526.60 311.12




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Note Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

25 Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Tax
(a) In respect of the current year
(b) Earlier years tax provision written back

Deferred Tax
(@) In respect of the current year (44.81) (44.86)

Tax expense recognised through statement of profit and loss (44.81) (44.86)

Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (ocl)

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year {0.14) (0.26)
Tax credit recognised through Other Comprehensive Income (0.14) {0.26)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax (162.76) (137.95)
Enacted income tax rate in India 27.82% 27.82%
Income tax calculated (45.28) (38.38)
Others 0.47 (6.48)

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit & loss (44.81) (44.86)
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No.
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Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2022

Nature of operations
Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limitad ("The Company’) was incorporated on 14th Jan, 2019 with an object of developing, operating and managing multiple cardiac cenlres with interventional
& diagnostics cardiology and eritical care Capability in private & pubiic hospitals.

New and amended standards

There were carlain amendments that apply for the first time for the year ending 31 March 2022, but do not have a malerial impact on the financial statements of the Comapny. The Company
has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective,

(i) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2; Amendments to Ind AS 108, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an altemative nearly risk-free
interest rate (RFR)

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

A praclical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate,
equivaient to a movement in a market rate of inlerest

Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued

Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separalely identifiable requirement when an RFR instument is designated as a hedge of a risk component
These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
(i) Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework Is not 2 Standarg and il does not override any specific standard, Therefore, this does not form pan of a set af standards pronounced by the standard-setiers
While, the Framewark s Primarily meant for the standard-setier for formulating the standards, it has relevance 1o the preparers in certain siluations such as o develop
consistent accounting policies for areas that are not caverad by 4 standard or where fhere Is chaice of accounting policy, and to assist ail parties to understand and interpret
the Standards.

The amendments made in following stangards due to Concaptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS includes emendment of the foolnote to the definition of an
equity Instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote o be addad for definition of liakility Le. definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition
in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Cantingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS cansequential to Conceptual Framewark under Ind AS vide notification dated 18 June 2021, applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framawork is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions bayond 30 June 2021 to update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in
lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

Since Company’s current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, there is no material effect on the financial statements of the Company.
(iv) Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to gquaiify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the ideniifiable assets acquired and fiabiiities assumed must meet the
definitions of assets and fiabiiities In the Fr for the Preg ion angd Presantation of Financlal Statements in-accordance with Indisn Atcounting Standsards Issued by
the Institite of Chartered Accountaris of india at the acquisition date. Therefors. the acquirer does not recognise those casts as pail of applying the acquisition method
Instead, the acquirer racognises lluse ©usts in its post-combination financial stalements in accordance with other Ind AS

This amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Company but may impact future periods should the Company enter inlo any business combinations.
(v) Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “iha higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use" are replaced with “higher of
anassel’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company
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New and amended standards, not yet effective

The Ministry of Carporate Aftsirs (MCA) in consultation with National Financial Reporling Authority (NFRA} vide its notification dated 23 March 2022, has made cerain
amendments in Companias (Indian Accounting Standard Rules), 2015. Such amendments shall come into force with effect from 1 April 2022, but do not have a material
Impact on (he consolidated financial statements of the Company

(i) Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendments specify that to qualify far recognition ‘as part of applying the acquisition methed, the identifiabie assels acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards {Concapiual Framework) issued by the Inslitute of
Chartered Accountants of Indiz at the acquisition date. These changes 4o not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103,

This amendment may impact future periods should the Company enler into any business combinations.
(ii) Ind AS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilitles, and Contingent Assets

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfiling’ a contract comprises (he ‘costs that refate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a conltract can eilher be
Incremental costs of fuffilling that contract (examplas would be direct labour, materials) or an aliocation of olher costs that relale direclly to fulfiling contracts.

Since Company's current practice is in line with the clarificalions issued, lhere may not be material effect on the financial slatements of the Company

(iii) Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 percenl’ test of ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. Since
Company currant practice is in line with the clarifications issued, there may not be material effecl on the financial statements of the Company.

(iv) Ind AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment

The smendments mainly prohibit an entily from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items producad while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity wil recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Campany does not expect the
amendments to have any Impact an the financia siatements

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Acl 2013 (the “Act’) read logether with
Companiss Ind AS rules 2015,

The financial statemenls were approved by the Company's Board of Directors on Sth May, 2022.

b) Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certaln financial instruments that are meaasured at fair values al the end of each reparting pariod.
Historical Cost is generally based on the fair vaiue of the consideration given in exchange of gonds and servicas

Fair value is the price that would be received (o sell an asse! o paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwean market participants at the measuremant date, regardless of
whether that price Is directly observable or estimaled using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or 2 liability, the Company taken into account the
characlenistics of the asse! or liability it market particlpants would take those characteristics. into account when pricing the asset or liabliity &t the measurement dale. Fair value for
I urement and / or disciosure purposes in these financlal statemants |s determined on such @ basis.

In addition, for financiat reporling purposes, fair value measurements are calegorised into Level 1. 2, or 3 based on the degree to which (he inputs to Lhe fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs (o the fair valus measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

»  Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access al the measurement date;
- Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the assels or liabilities either direclly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

<) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost {or revalued amounts, as the case may be), less accumulated depreciation and impaifment foss, if any, Cosl comprises the purchase price
and any afirbutable cost of bringing the property, plant and equipment lo its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating te acquisition of property, plant and equipmant
which takes substantial period of time 1o get ready for its inlended use are-also Inciuded to the extent they refate to the periad till such property, plant and equipment are ready 1o be put to
use,

The cost of an itlem of property, plant and equipment is the case price equivaient al Lhe recognition date. If Payment is deferred beyond nomal credil terms, the difference between the cash
price equivalent and the tolal payment is recognised as interest over the Period of credit, unless such interest is capitalised as per borrowing cost.

The Company identifies and delermines separate useful life of each major component of the property, plant and equipment, if they have useful life that is malerially different from that of the
remaining asset, as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
quipment on the cost of assets less fheir resigual values on straight line method over the useful lives as indicated in Part C of Schedule Il of the

Deprecialion on all of the property, plant and @ )
Companies Act, 2013, Deprecistion Methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prespeciive basis

Depreciation commences when the fixed assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation is provided on a straight line based on the estimated useful life of PPE as per management
internal assessment, which is as follows:

Assets Useful Life as per Scheduie If

7-15 Years
5 Years
3 Years
10 Years
8 Years

€) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition al cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulaled impairment losses, if any

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of iis acquisition or construction, or, when applicable, the
amount atlribuled to that asset when initially recognised in aceardance with the specific requirements of other Indian Accounting Standards.




f) Leases
Where the Company is the lessee

The Company's lease ssset classes primarily consist of leases for buiidings. The Company assesses whather & coniract containg a lease, al inception of & contract, A contract is, or contains,
& lease if the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identfizg assal for a period of tims in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a caniract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified assel, the Company assesses whather.(I) the contract involves the use of an identified assel (i) the Company has substantially all of the sconomic benefils from use of
the assel through the pariod of the |eass and (i) the Compeny has the right to direct the use of the asset

Al the date of commencement of the lzase, the Company recognizes a right-of-use assel("ROU")and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangernents in which it is a lessee, except
for ieases with 2 term of welve months or less{short-iemm leases)and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the fease payments as an
aperaling expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the [zasa.

Cenrtain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or temminale the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assels and lease liabililies includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of
lhe lzase plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measired at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciatad from the commencament date ana straighl-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverablity whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpase of Iimpairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair valus less cost to sell end the Vvajue-in-use) is determined on 2n individua! asset basis.

The lease liabifity is Initially measured at amortized cost at Ihe present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discountad using he intsrest rate implicit In the lease or.if
ot readily d inable, using tha ir ital borowing rates. Lease iabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use assat if the Company changes its
assasement if whether it will exercise an exiension or a lermination option. Leass liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease paymenis have
been classified as financing cost.

Where the Company Is the lessor

Laases for which the Company Iz a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease, Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership o the
lessee, the contract is classified as 2 finance lease, All ather leases are classified as operating leases.

ncluded in PPE. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the statemeant of profit and fess on a straight-line basis over the lease tarm. Where
se in line with expected

#ssels subject lo operating lsas
ganeral infiation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the

85 ara |
the rantals are structured solely to increa
year in which such benefits accrue,
Costs, including deprecialion, are recognized as an expense in the stalement of profit and loss. Inilial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased assels and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

g) Inventories
Irventories consisting of pharmacy drugs and medical consumables are measured at the lower of cost and net reafisable value The cost of all categories of inventories is based on the
Welghted Average Cost mathod,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less eslimated costs necessary to make lhe sale

h} Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the transaction price. Revenue is reduced for returns, trade allowances for deduclion, rebates, laxes and amounls collected on behalf of third parlies.
“The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each separalely identifiable component of the Revenue transaction as set out below:

e of Phammacy Drugs and Medical lig:
Revenue from the sale of pharmacy drugs and medical supplies is recognised, at a point of time when the controf of the goods has passed to the buyeri.e. at the point of sale/ delivery to the
cuttorner at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Sale is net of sales retumns, discounts & Goods & Services
Tax.
In from O ion:
Revenue is recarded when the performance obligalion is salisfied. For Out Patient Customer, services are simultaneously received and consumed by the patient. For In patient customers,
revanue js recognized as services are periormed over the period. Revenue for the ongoing services at the raporing date is recognized as unbilled revenue. The income is stated nel of
discounts and price différences as per the terms of contract.

Inferest
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate

I} Employees Benefits

Short term employee benefits
Employes benefits payabls wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benafits include salary and wages, banus and exgratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefils to be paid in exchange for employee services Is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendsred by the employees

Post employment beneifts

Defned contribiution plan

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan Under which an entity pays specified contributions 1o separata entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The
Corpany makes specified obligations towards employes provident fund and employee state insurance 1o Government administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a
defined contribution plan, The Coimpany's contributions are recognized as an expense in the statemant of profitand loss during the perind in which the employee renders the related service.

When the benefils of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that refates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in
the slatement of profit and loss.




) Income taxes
Income tax expensc represenis the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

i) Cument Tax

The tax cunenlly payatle is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense nat are taxable or deductible in othar ¥&ars and items that are never laxable or deductible. The current tax is calcuated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enactad by the end of the Teporting pericd.

Current income-tax is measured al the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities i accordance with the Income-lax Acl, 1961 enacted in India and lax laws prevalling in the
respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates.

i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differencas belwosn the carrying armuunls of assets and liabilities in the financiat stalements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of
taxable profit

Daferred tax lighiities are generally recognized for all taxable lemparary differencas. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible lemporary differences to the extent that it
is probabla that laxable profils will be available against which thoss daduciible temparary dilferences can pe ulilized

Defarred tax is imeasured bassd on tax rates and tax laws enacted or substaniively enacted at the balance shest data. Deferred tax assats and deferred tax liabiiiies are offsel, if & legally
enforceabie right exisis to set off current 1ax assets against current tax liabilitles. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent, thal there Is reasanable certainty that sufficient fulure
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asseis can be realized. In situations where the compary has unabsorbed depraciation or camy forward tax losses, all deferred
tax assets are recognized enly if there s virual certainty supporied by convincing evidenes that they can be realized 2gainst future taxable profits

The camying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporling period and reduced to the extent that is no longer probable thal sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all part of assets lo be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates and tax laws enacled or substantively enacted by Ihe end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists lo set off curent tax assets against curmrent tax liabilities.

fi)  Current and deferred tax for the vear ) . e
Current and deferred tax ara recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relale to items that are recognized in olher comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the curment and deferred tax are also recognized in other coemprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

k) Earnings Per share

Basic eamings per share is being calculated by dividing net profit or toss for the year (including prior period items, if any) atiributable to equity shareholders by the weighled average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year atlributable (o equity shareholders and the weighled average number of shares oulstanding during
Lhe year are adjusted for the effects of all ditutive potential equity shares.

1) Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products / aclivities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assels and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has delermined
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

m) Financial Instrument
Financial assets and financiat liabilities are récognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Financial assets and financial liabilites are nitially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiibutable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilites
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair valus through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair valua of the financial assets or financial lizbilities, as appropniate,
an inifial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acqulsition of financial assets or financial liabiifies 2t fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and deracagnised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assels thal
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or canyantion in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assals are subsequently measured in their entirety al either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets -
Financial Assats that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for financial assels that are designated As at fair value through profit or loss on initial

recognition);

i} the assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows ,and _
ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outslanding,

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for financial assets that are designated As at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i) the assets is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

ii} the conlractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows (hat are salely payments of pringipal and intcrest un e pilnclpal imount outstanding

interest income s recogrised in profit or loss for FVTOC financial assats, For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOC! financial assels are Irealed as
financial assels measured at amortised cost Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost ara recognised In profit or lnss and other changes in the fair valua of EVTOGC! finansial
assels afe recognised In other comprehansive income and actumulated undet the heading of ‘Resanm for financial accets through other cunprehensive Income’. When the investmant is
disposed of, the cumulative gain or foss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified fo profit or loss.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value,

Effective interest melhod

The affective interest method is a methed of calculating the smortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocaling interest income Gver the relevant penod. The effective interest rale is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated fullire cash recaipts (including all fess and pointg paid or received Lhat form an integral part of the effective Interest rate. transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, & shorier period, to the nat camying amount on initial recognition,

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified As at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the "Other income” line item,




Finanrial acsets at fair value through prullt ut luss (FVIPL)

eliminates nr Fignificantly reducos & measurenent or recegniion incansistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or reeognising the yains and losses on them on diffarent
basee. The Company has not dosignated sny debl instrument As at FVTEL

Financial assels at FVTPL are measured al fair valug at the end of each reporiing period, with any gains or losses arsing on remeasurement recognised In profil or loss. The nat gain o loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporales any dividand or interest eamed on the financial assel and Is included in the ‘Other income’ line llem, Dividend on financial assets at FYTPL is
recognised when the Company’s right to recelve the dividends is established, it is probable thal the economic banefits assaciated with the dividend will flow to the entity. the dividand does not
represan| a recovery of part of cost of lhe Investman! and the amoun! of dividend ©&n be moasured raliably.

Impairment of financlal assets
The Company applies the expzciad credit loss mode! for recognising impairmenlt Ioss on financial assets measured at amortised cosl, debt instruments al FVTOCI, lease receivables, lrade
receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated As at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Cradit loss Is the differgnce between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordanice with the cantract and ali the cash flows that the Company expects to receive fi.e. all.cash shortfalis), discounted al the original effective inlerest
rate (or credit-adjusted effective interast rate for purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets). The Compsany estimates cash flaws by considering all contraciual t2rms of the
financial Instrurment (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar oplions) through the expected life of that financial instrumant.

The Company measures the loss allowance for 2 financial instrument at an amount 2qual 1o the lfetime expected credit losses # the cradit fisk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly sinca inftial recognition, the Company measures Ihe less allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expacied cradit losses, 12-month expecied credit josses are portion of the fife-time expected credit losses and represent tha |ifelime cash
shartfalis that will resull i default oceurs within the 12 months aftar the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predictad over the next 12 months,

if tha Company measurad |pss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporling period that the credit
fisk has not Increased significantly sinca initial recognition due 1o improvement in credit quality as compared 1o the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based
on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessmant of whether there has been a significant increase in eredit fisk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a dsfault oezurring over the
expected life of |he financial instrument Instead of the changa in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that ass 1t, the Company comp the fisk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument As at the reporting date with the risk of a defaull occurming on the finencial instrument As at the date of initial recognition and corsiders reasonable and supponable
infermation, that is available without undue cost o effort, that is indicative of significant increases in tredit isk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any conltraciual right to receive cash or another financial asset that resuit from transaclions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures
the loss allowance at an amount 2qual o lifalime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade recaivables, the Company has used a pracical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 108, This expected
credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which lakes into aceount historical credit loss experience and adjusled for farward looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition &nd measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied 1o debl instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the cartying amount in the balance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Comparty derecognises a financisl asset when the contractual fights 1o the cash fiows frem the asset Expire, of wien it iransfers the financlal asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assst 1 anather party. if the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ewnership and continues to contral the transfarrad
asset, the Company recogrises its retained Interest in the assat and an associated lizbility for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ovmership of a transferred financial assel, the Company continues to recogrise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the procesds received.

On derecognition of a financial assst atter than in its enfirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase P2t of @ transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous
camying amount of the financial asset batween {he part if continues to recognise under cantinuing Invelvament, and the part it no langer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those paris on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carmying amount allocated to the part that Is no longer racognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recogrised and any cumuiative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income Is recognised in profit of loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss an disposal of that financlal assel. A cumulative gain or lass that had been recognised In other comprahensive income s allocated between the
part that confinues to ba recognised and the part that is no Ipnger recognised on the basis of the reiative fair values of those parts.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign curency is determined in that forelgn cumency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign
currency denominated financial assels measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchangs differences are recognised in stalement of profit and loss since there are no designated
hedging instruments in a hedging refationship,

Financial liabilities

All financial liabililies are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL,

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or then the conlinuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts
Issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rale are measured in accordance with the specific actaunting policies se! out
below.

Financial liabilities are classified As at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it |s designated As at FVTPL.

Afinancial liability is classified as reld for trading if:
i) it has been incurrad principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
i)} on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the company manages together and has a recent aclual Pattem of short-term profit-taking; or

i) itis a derivalive that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument,
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Financial fiabiliies at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The nel gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporales any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Howaver, for non-hald-for-trading financial liabiities that are designated As at FVTPL, the amount of change In the fair value of the financial liabiiity that is attibutable 10 changes in the credit
risk of thal liabillty is recognised in other comprehensive Income, unless the recognition of the effecs of changes in the liabilty's cradit risk in other comprehensive income would creste or
enlarge an accounting mismateh in profit or 1055, in which case thesa effacts of changes in credit risk ars recognised In profit or loss. The remaining amount of ehange In the fair value of
liability is always recognised in profit or jass. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's cradit risk that ars recagnised in ather comprehensive income are refiected immediately

Gains or losses on financial guarantee conlracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company As a fair value through profil or loss are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cosl

The effective interest method is & method of eaiculating the amortised cast of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense ovar the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rele that exactly discol estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or recelved that form an intzgral part of the effective interest rate, transaction cosls and other
Premiums or discounts) through the 2xpecied life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter periad, to the net carmying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a conlract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse [he holder for a loss itincurs because a specified debtor fails lo make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument,

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group enlity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated As al FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordancs with impairment requirements of Ind AS 108; and
i) lhe amount initially recognised less, when appropriaie, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of ind AS115.

Forelgn exchange gains and losses .
For financial liabilies that are denominated in a foreign curmency and are measured al amorlised cost at the end of each reporting perod, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at (he spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabiliies that are measured As at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of deby
i S with sub ¥ different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
madification of the terms of an existing financial liabitity (whether or not atinbutable to the financial dificulty of the deblor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the enginal finansial JtahiJilry
and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial lizbility derecognised and the consideration paid and payabile is racognised in
statement of profit & loss.

n) Provisions & Conting )
Pravisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a pastevent, it is probable that the company will be required to settie the obligation,
and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Segmental Reporting

fi Is
Ind AS 108 *Operating Segment® ("ind AS 108°) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprizes report information about operaling segments and related disclqsures about
products and services, geographic areas, and major customers Based on the *management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner
consislent with the intermal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company's perdormance and allocales resources on overal| basis.
The Company’s sole operating segment is thereiore ‘Healthcare services'. Accordingly, there are no additional disciosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already providad
In the financial siataments,

Ne»ﬁfl




Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Note 27: Analytical Ratios
Note 27.1: Ratio

Particulars Units 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 % change from

March 31, 2021

to Mar 31, 2022
Current Ratio Times 0.89 1.28 (30.88)
Debt-Equity Ratio Times 2.06 218 (5.74)
Debt Service Coverage ratio Times 0.19 0.23 (17.86)
Inventory Turnover ratio Times 471 5.64 {16.54)
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Times 3.63 6.897 {47.99)
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Times 1.54 1.77 (13.24)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Times (15.33) 6.56 {333.76)
Net Profit ratio Percentage (0.12) (0.14) (18.77)
Retumn on Equity ratio Percentage (0.24) (0.32) (24.02)
Retum on Capital Employed Percentage (0.05) {0.05) 0.53
Return on Investment Percentage (0.04) (0.04) (2.08)
Note 27.2: Elements of Ratio (T in Lacs)

Ratlos 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Numerator Denominator Numerator Denominator

Current ratio 508.76 574.12 443.44 345.90
Debt- Equity Ratio 1,080.92 525.19 966.86 442.80
Debt Service Coverage ratio 30.16 157.98 15.56 66.96
Inventory Turnover ratio 236.96 50.32 163.02 28.89
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 1.001.72 276.16 639.47 91.70
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio 266.07 172.78 176.76 99.59
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.001.72 (65.36) 639.47 97.53
Net Profit Ratio (117.61) 1.001.72 (92.43) 639.47
Retumn on Equily ratio (117.61) 484.00 {92.43) 289.02
Retum on Capital Employed (81.32) 1,606.11 (70.99) 1,409.67
Return on Investment (81.32) 1,979.02 (70.99) 1.691.90

Note 27.3: Consideration of Element of Ratio

i Current Ratio:

ii. Debt-Equity Ratio:

iii. Debt Service Coverage ratio:

iv. Inventory Turnover ratio:

v. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio:

vi. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio:

vii. Net Capital Turnover Ratio:
viii. Net Profit ratio:

ix. Return on Equity ratio:

x. Return on Capital Employed:

xi. Return on Investment:

Numerator= Current Assets

Denominator= Current Liabilities

Numerator= Total Debt

Denominator= Total Equity - Revaluation Reserve

Numerator= Profit before Tax + Finance cost + Depreciation
Denominator= Repayment of Borrowings + Interest on Borrowings
Numerator= Cost of Goods Sold

DPenominator= Average Inventory

Numerator= Total Sales

Denominator=Average Trade Receivables

Numerator= Total Purchases

Denominator= Average Trade Payables

Numerator= Revenue from operations

Denominator= Working Capital (i.e. Current Assets - Current Liabilities)
Numerator= Net Profit after tax

Denominator= Revenue from operations

Numerator= Net Profit after tax

Denominator= Average Shareholder's Equity

Numerator= Eaming before interest and taxes

Denominator= Total Networth+ Total Debt+ Total Deferred Tax Liability
Numerator= Eaming before interest and taxes

Denominator= Total Assets

Note 27.4: Reasons for more than 25% increase/ (decrease) in above ratios

Particulars

% change from

Current Ratio

The change in ratio is due to following reasons:

1. The Company has also utilised the owned funds for the purpose of expansion plans leading to reduclion in
bank balances as compared to previous year.

2. There has been substantial increase in the current portion of leng term borrowings vis a vis the previous year
due o lapse of the moratorium period granted by the lender.

Debt-Equity Ratio

Not Significant

Debt Service Coverage ratio

Not Sianificant

Inventory Turnover ratio

Not Significant

Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio

The change in ratio is due to increase in credit sales in\ the turnover of the Company vis a vis the previous year
due to the new projects entered into by the Company as per the expansion plans.

Trade Pavable Tumover Ratio

Not Significant

Net Capital Tumover Ratio

As already mentioned in the reason for change in current ratio above, the change in the ratio is due to following
reasons:

1. The Company has also utilised the owned funds for the purpose of expansion plans leading 1o reduction in
bank balances as compared to previous year.

2. There has been substantial increase in the current portion of long term borrowings vis a vis the previous year
due to lapse of the moratorium period granted by the lender.

Net Profit ratio

Not Sianificant

Return on Eauity ratio

Nol Sianificant

Return on Capital Employed

/"‘_A\_
Not Significant 2R AN

Retumn on Investment

Not Significant V/ASY S N\
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Capital and Other Commitments

{Rs. In Lacs)

a) Capital Commitments

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Estimaled amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 1990 -
account not provided for (Net of Advances)
Eaming Per Share (EPS)
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Net profit after Tax (117.85) (93.09)
Profit/ (Loss) attributable to the Equity Shareholders (117.95) (93.09)
Basic / Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the year 72,52,055 344,93,151
Eamning Per Share (in Rupees)
- Basic (1.63) (2.66)
- Diluted (163) (2.66)
Nominal value of Equity Shares 10.00 10.00

The Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors. According to such identificalion,

the disclosures as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006" are as follows:

Rs.In Lacs

Rs.In Lacs

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of
each accounting year

- Principal Amount

3.66

- Interest thereon

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the paymeni made !o the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appoeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year, and the
amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deduclible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plan

The company has recognized, in statement of Profit & Loss for year ended 31st March, 2022 an amount of Rs. 12.34 Lacs (Previous period Rs. 8.14 Lacs) under defined contribution

) plans.

Expense under defined contribution plans include:

a}) Employer’s contribution to provident fund

b) Employer's contribulion to Employee State Insurance Corporation
c) Employer's contribution to Labour Welfare Fund

The expense is disclosed in the line item - contribution to provident fund and other funds in Note 21

Year ended

st March, 2022 _

11.60
0.65
0.09

12.34

Period ended
$1st March, 2021

7.55

0.50

0.09

8.14




Defined benefit plan
i) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of the service gets a gratuity on retirement / terminalion at 15 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company has also provided for long-term compensaled absences.

Gratuity (unfunded) Leaves (unfunded}
31st March, 31st March,
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 2022 2021
(i)  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances
of obligations:
a)  Obligation at the beginning 1.06 1.25 7.22 3.59
b) Current Service Cost 1.10 0,65 552 515
c) Interest Cosi 0.07 0.08 0.49 0.24
d) Past Service Cost - = - -
e) Acluarial {Gain) / Loss (0.48) (0.92) (3.87) (0.56)
f)  Benefits paid - - (1.63) (1.19)
g) Obligalion at the period end 175 1.06 7.74 722

(i) Change In Plan Assels (Reconciliation of opening
and closing balances):

a) Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning -
b)  Prior Period Adjusiment - - -
c) Expected return on Plan Asset - -
d) Contributions = -
e) Benefits paid - -
f)  Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets - =
g) Fair Value of Plan Assets at period end - -

(i) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations:

a) Present value of abligation at period end 1.75 1.06 7.74 7.22
b)  Fair Value of Plan Assets at period end - - L ]
c) Asset/ Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 175 1.06 7.74 7.22
(iv) Amount recognized in the income statement -
a) Cument Service Cost 1.10 065 552 515
b} Past Service Cost - - - -
c} Interest Cost 0.07 0.08 0.49 024
d) Curtailment Cost (Credit) - - - -
e) Expected retum on Plan Assets - - - -
f)  Acluarial (Gain)/ Loss (0.48) (0.82) (3.87) (0.56)
g) Expenses recognized during the period 0.69 (0.19) 214 4.83
(v) Other Comprshensive Income (OCI)
a) Unrealised actuarial Gain / (Loss) 048 092 3.87 0.56
(v} Assumptions: As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
a) Discounting Rate (per annum) 7.26% 6.76%
b)  Future Salary Increase 5.00% 5.50%
Withdrawal / Employee Tumover Rate
¢) Age upto 30 years 36.00% 36.00%
d) Age from 31 to 44 years 32.00% 32.00%
e) Age above 44 years 15.00% 15.00%
Indian Assured Lives Mortality
Mortalty table used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) (2012-14)
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation: :
Year Amount
0-1Yr 001
12Yr 0.02
23Yr 0.17
34Yr 0.43
4-5Yr 0.13
56 Yr 0.0
>6 Yr 091

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market.

Significant actuariat assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discounted rate, expected salary escalation rate and withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analyses below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The above information is certified by the actuarial valuer.
Enterprise best estimate of contribution during next year is Rs. 1.89 Lacs for Gratuity & Rs. 6,23 Lacs for Leave Encashment.

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield of Government of India as at the date of valuation.

Year ended Year ended
i — 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Change in discount rate by 0.50% (0.18) 0.15 (0.16) 0.14
Change in Salary escalation rate by 0.50% 015 (0.19) 0.14 (0.16)

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated,

Sensitivity as to rate of infiation, rate of increase of pansions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expeciancy are nol applicable being a lump sum benefit
on refirement
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Financial Instruments
i) Capltal Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concem while maximising the retum 1o stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debl {borrowings as Detailed in Notes 13 offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company,

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements other than for covenants under various loan arrangemenls of the Company.

The Company's Board reviews the capital structure of the Company on need basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. The gearing ratio as 31st March 2022 196%( 169%, 31s1 March 2021)

Gearing Ratio :

The gearing ratio at end of the reporling period was as follows {Rs. In Lacs)
As at
As at March

Particulars 31.2022 March

. 31,2021
Debt * 1,088.13 973,67
Less : Cash and Bank Balances (Refer Note 8 ) 68.45 227.36
Net Debt 1,029.68 746.31
Total Equity 52519 442.80
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 196% 169%

¢ Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings.

1) Cateqories of Financial Instruments
(Rs.In Lacs)

Financial Assets As at 31st As at 31st
KMarch 2022  March 2021

Measured at amortised cost

Trade receivables - Current 377.96 174.35
Cash and cash equivalents - Current 58.45 227.36
Other Bank balances - Current - *

Loans 0.48 074
Other Financial Assels 267 0.80
Total 439.56 403.25

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of financial assets designated at FVTPL. The carrying amount reflected above represents the Company’s
maximum exposure lo credit risk for such financial assets.

[Rs. In Lacs)
Financial Llabilities As at 31st As at 31st
March 2022  March 2021

Measured at amortised cost

Borrowinas - Non Current 871.76 896.30
Borrowinas - Current 209.16 7057

Trade payables - Current 204.44 141.12
Other financial [gbifities - Currant 146.21 121.89
Total 1431.57 1229.88

ii) Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company’s Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access 1o domestic and intemational financial markets, monitors and manages the financial
risks including market risk (including currency risk, interest rale risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors manages the financial risk of the Company through intemal risk reports which analyse exposure by magnitude of risk. The Company has no exposure from the
intemational market as the Company’s operations are in India. The Company has no exposure towards foreign currency risk as it eams no revenue in foreign currency.

Market Risk

The Company's activities expose il primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates.

a) Interest Rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an
appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The Company’s exposures to interest rales on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this nole




Interest Rate sensitivity analysis
The sensilivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates al the end of the reporting period For floating rale liabilities, the analysis is prepared

assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk intemally 1o key management personnel and represenls management’s assessment of the reasénably possible change in interest rates,

{Rs.In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs]

If increase by 1% In interest rates Interest Interest
Impact Impact |
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2022 | March 2021
Increase / {decrease) in profit or loss for the year/period (10.81) {9.67)
Increase / (decrease) in lotal eguity as at the end of the reporting period (10.81) {9.67)
If decrease by 1% In Interest rates Interest Interest
Impact Impact
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2022 | March 2021
Increase / (decrease) in orofit ar loss for the year/period 10.81 9.67
Increase / (decrease) in lotal equity as at the end of the reporting period 10.81 9.67

b) Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its conlractual obligations resulling in financial loss to the Company. The Company takes due care while extending any
credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of Directors.

¢) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the company’s short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking faciliies and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities
Nole given below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that the Company has at its disposal {o further reduce fiquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurming unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities

Rs.In Lacs
Carrying
Amount (net
Particulars Within 1 year 1-2years Moree;r;:n B Total of
Y transaction
cost)
As at 31st March 2022
Borrowings 209 16 232.40 639.36 1,080.92 1.080.92
Trade Pavables 204.44 - - 204.44 204,44
Interest 2 0 in 7.21 7.24 7.21
Other Financial Liabilities 139.00 139.00 139.00
Total 559.81 232.40 639.36 1,431.57 1.431.57
Carrying
Amount (net
Partlculars Within 1 year 1-2years Moree:::n 2 Total of
Y transaction
cost)
As at 31st March 2021
s 70.57 173.04 72326 966.87 966 87
Tr ayables 141,12 - - 14112 14112
Interest accrued but not due on borrowinas 6.80 6.80 6.80
Other Financial Liahilities 115,09 115.09 115.09
Total 333.58 173.04 723.26 1.229.88 1.229.88
33 Related party disclosure
a) Name of related parties
Parties where control exists Irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not
Ulimate Parent Company Constructive Finance Private Limited
Holding Company Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Key Management Personnel Mr. Arpit Jain (CEO) (upto 31st August 2021)

Enterprises having significant influence Philips Medical Systems Nederand BV
Apollo Tyres Centre of Excellence Limited




b) Transactions during the year

{Rs. In Lacs)

Holding Company

Key Management Personnel &
thelr relatlves

Enterprises having
significant influence

Rartlcutars For the year/Period ended For the year/Period ended For the year/Period ended
31st March, | 31st March,
31stMarch, 2022 | 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2022 315;0"2'1”}" 2022 Ll
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment - 316.79 ¢ -
Reimbursement of Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company 6181 B17 B )
Cuipuiale Guaranles Fes 0.78 0.63
| Purchase of medical consumatbles - 6.12
| Intarest on inter Corporate Loan - 0.78
| Issus of Shara Capital 130.00 260.00 70.00 140.00
Rent Paid 0.35
KMP-Compensation
Arpit Jain 26.36 33.72
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
Arplt-Jain
Post-Employment Benefits - 0.59
Short-term benefits - 3.03
Total- DBO - 3.62
* Transaclions are reporied including taxes.
(Rs. In Lacs)
31st March, | 31st March,
Balance Payable Name of Related Party 2022 2021
Key Management Personnel & their relatives Mr. Arpit Jain 3.87 3.57
Holding Company Artemis Medicare Services Limited 66.79 66 68
Cnierprises havina significant influcnce Apollo Tyres Centre of Excrllencs | imitad 0.35
34 Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers)
31st March  31st March
2022 2021
8. Dlsuyyicyated tevenus informatian (Rs.InLacs) Rs.Inlacs
Type of Services or goods
Revenue from Healthcare Services g84.90 510.07
Revenue from Sales of Drugs and Consumables 13682 128.40
Total 1,001.72 639.47
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Customers based in India 1,001.72 638.47
Total 1.001.72 £30.47
Timlng of Revenue Recognition
Services transferred over time ( Healthcare Services) 864.90 510.07
Goods (Pharmacy and consumable) transferred al a point of time 136.82 129.40
Total 1,001.72 639.47
b. and Contract Customers
Trade Receivables {includes GST) 377.96 174,35
Unbilled revenue 267 0.80
Total 380.63 175.15
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0- 90 days. Rs, 3.47 Lakhs(Previous Year Rs. NIL) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables.
Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance sheet
The three largest customer have total share in revenue for the period ended March 31,2022 : 83% ( March 31,2021 : 99%) and in receivables as at March 31,2022 91% (March 31,2021
97%)
c. Perfor g 1and r performance obligation

The remaining perfarmarnice obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet o be recognized as al the end of the reporting period and an explanation as
1o when tha Campany expecta to ro00gnize thoso amountc in revenue.There were no remaining perfnmanea nhligation as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services.
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The company incurred Rs.0.80 lacs for the year ended March 31,2022 (Previous period Rs 1.28 Lacs) towards expenses relating to short term leases and leases of low value aseets.

The Pariiament of India has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020{the Code) which may impact the contiibution by the Cumpany lowards provident fund, graluily and ESI. The
Code have been published in Gazetie of India however, the effective date has not yet been notified The Company will assess the impact of the code when it comes into effect and will

record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective,if any.

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic giobally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity The Company has considered the
possible efiects of Covid-19 on the camving amaunis of Praperty Plant and Fauipment Trade Receivahle and Other Cument Assets In develaping the assumplions relaling to the
possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the company, as at the date of approval of the financial statements, has used extemal and intemat
sources of information/indicators to estimale the future performance of the Company. Based on cument estimates the Company expects the camying amount of these assets to be
recovered. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be
different from that eslimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

As per our report of even date attached
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